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A Journey through Mbale’s History
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Musundi House (early 1970s) Old Lukhobo House (1956)
Kitutu House (1950s) The four-storeyed building on Bishop Wasikye Builtin 1956 by the British colonial government, it was the Clock Tower (1932) .
- , - Named after Bugisu Cooperative Union (BCU)'s founder/chairman, Road was the first tallest building in Mbale. council hall for Bukedi and Bugisu districts. The building gets Builtin1932 in memory of King George VI, the monument Semei Kakungulu (1915-1920)
Bugisu Cooperative Union Factory (1950s) Samson Kitutu, the building located on Republic Street was initially Named after Enock Musundi, former BCU Chair- its name from a Lumasaba/Lugisu word -Lukhobo, which means is the symbol of the city, given its central location. It was The former residence of Semei Kakungulu, a prominent agent
Following the amalgamation of four unions: Bubulo Cooperative meant to house a cooperative bank for coffee farmers, however, the idea man (1964-1982), it is the only building equipped  parliament or council hall. It is reported that whenever Bagisu constructed by an Indian architect, Kassim Jamal Esquare. of the British government, located on top of Gangama Hill
Union, Masaaba North Cooperative, Bulambuli Kikobero, and Bun- was abandoned when the central government took it up. When it was with a liftin Mbale, though it is said to have had their council meetings in the morning, the Bakedi would In 2021, Mbale City authority in partnership with Capital maintains most of its original features such as the roof, win-
gokho Cooperative to form Bugisu Cooperative Union (BCU) in 1954, commissioned on January 30th, 1953, the building had been repurposed worked for a few days. The building served as a be expected to meet in the afternoon. In 1967, Bukedi district Outdoor, an advertising company, renovated the monument, dows and walls. Built with sun-dried bricks between 1915 and
the cooperative acquired land on Pallisa Road in 1956 and embarked to house BCU offices, with a conference hall that was utilized for public residence for the African Textile Mill officers and headquarters were moved to Tororo town and the land in Ma- adding coffee beans on the top and repairing the gong (bell), 1920, 0n a147-acre estate, it was a grand accomplishment at
on the construction of their first coffee milling factory known as John functions. Kitutu House was turned into a public library until the late later lecturers of the Islamic University in Uganda  |ukhu was vested in the Bugisu Land Board and all assets given which had not worked for over 30 years due to vandalism. the time. Kakungulu is remembered for building many towns
Gordon. The building attests to the history and contribution of coffee 1980s when Barclays Bank (now Absa Bank) started renting it. (IUIU). The building is currently under renovation  to the Bugisu District Administration. The building temporarily Masaaba cultural institution in Uganda including Mbale.
to the growth of the city. houses the Inzu Ya Masaaba cultural institution

St. Austin Catholic church (1944) St. Andrew Cathedral —Church of Uganda (1961)  Mt. Elgon Hotel (1958) , Bamasaaba Culture Centre, Mutoto (1980s) Sports Club (1953)

Post Office (1950s) The church was the third of its kind in Bugisu, established U cathedr.al "' EanbEcecin 1?61,W'th S A= Consncedin LRI s Sl ety Named after ficus natalesis (barkcloth trees), traditionally known It was established in 1953 during the British colonial government.
Constructed to ease communication for the colonial gov- by the Mill Missionaries led by Fr. Van der Steen. It was built tectural design in the shape of a chief's hut. There |s.a panel Uganda afterMasujdl Hotel (_1920)' under.the then.Ugan— as mitoto among the Bagisu, Mutoto is believed to be the ground Located in Senior Quarters on 96 acres of land, it was exclusively for
ernment, the building was established towards Uganda's to bring Parish services closer to the people of Mbale who mounted at the hall of the cthedral compos.ed of pieces of da Hotels. chated inthe Semor(.lusjlrters, e wa}s builtto where the first Mugisu known as Mwambu was circumcised. It serves the whites as a recreational/leisure park where they would retire
independence. It was under the East African Common previously moved to Nyondo and Budadiri. The church previ- §tone donated by cathedrals in Englanq. Behind the Fathedral Cateno Fhe interests of the colonlahsts;‘no Africans were as a ceremonial ground where circumcision events and activities are after work for leisure. The swimming pool at this site is among the
Services, a company that was responsible for post offices, ously served only Europeans and Goans (Indian community). is Mbale's oldest church constructed using stongs. It |§ currently alloyved in the. hotel. The hote:l Yvas President Obote and launched before spreading to the rest of Bugisu. Previously, this cere- first ones in East Africa ata sports club
railways and telephones. For a long time, the Post Office and Inside the church, the seats were marked with names and used by L,JCU asastudents'chgpel.TheﬁrstAfrlcan Bishop of Amin's favourite for meals asitis a walk away from the mony was held at Malukhu but it was moved to Mutoto in the 1980s
BCU buildings were the biggestin Mbale City. there was no random sitting. Mbale Diocese was Rt. Rev. Erisa Masaaba MBE. StateLodge because Malukhu was in a town setting, which was not favorable for

the circumcision activities. At Mutoto, the circumcision calendar is

issued.
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. , S . 9 = , _ - - North Road Primary School (1932)
Umuyinga's residence e =N e e Sl E — Y e e | The first school was inspired by Asian architecture in
This house was a home to the first Umuyinga. This Bugisu/ S S " a2 4 el gy e Mbale due to the growth of the Asian community in
Bamasaaba cultural leadership title changed to Umukuuka. Abayudaya synagogue (2016) Reglonal block (1950s) — _ Mbale. Its foundation stone was laid by Sardar Wazirs-
Yonasani Mungoma was the first Umuyinga from 1963 t01966.  Since 1919 when Semei Kakungulu rejected Christianity to start High Court building (1950s) Built before independence in the 1950s, it was among the - — ingh Rais Ludhiana. It was opened to Ugandans in the
Mr. Mungoma is said to have been a professional teacher. He his religious sect, Mbale is known as s home for the black Jews Built before independence in the 1950s, it was among the first modernist buildings. It served the entire Bukedi and MunlClpa| buﬂdlng (1951) 1970s when President Idi Amin expelled Asians.
was a member of the Legislative Council (Legco) from1958-62  known as “The Abayudaya”, who practice Orthodox Judaism. first modernist buildings. It served the entire Bukedi and Bugisu (which also included the Sebei region). The court Now known as the City Council Building, it was con-
before he got elected as Umuyinga. Semei laid the foundation for the first synagogue at his home on Bugisu (which also included the Sebei region). The court only resolved criminal cases at that time. All magistrates structed by Indians who were the majority in the council.

Gangama Hill but this was later moved about 3 kilometers away only resolved criminal cases at that time. All magistrates were white and Asian until the late 1950s. Africans were The Israelites developed the architectural plan.

to Nabugoye where a grass-thatched synagogue was construct- were white and Asian until the late 1950s. Africans were admitted in preparation for Uganda's independence. The building contains a water fountain, with four faces,

ed. The new synagogue known as Nabugoye Stern Synagogue, admitted in preparation for Uganda's independence. representing the first black councilors who made it to the

was builtin 2016 (at the original site of the former synagogue) council.

following the ordaining of a new Rabbai, Hon. Gershom Sizomu
Wambede. It is also the headquarters of the Abayudaya commu-

nity in Africa.
The foundation

stone was laid by

c Mr. Githdharbhai V.
Wanale Rldge Kotecha in memory

Theridge was previously known ! ! ] i 1 (Y s e B e
as Nkorlkon]eru because of sl s Phads | 5 Vallbhdas Gordhan-
the belief that Wanale, the — :
last-born son of Masaaba (the

Elgon cinema (1956) 7 founding father of the Bagisu)
This house was a home to the.ﬁrs't Umuyinga. This Bugisu/ ' only reared white chicken. Itis The Hindu Temple (1956)
Bamasaaba cultural leadership title changed to Umukuu- ¥ one of the natural symbols of
ka. Yonasani Mungoma was the first Umuyinga from 1963 e : significance in Mbale. Itis also
t01966. Mr. Mungoma is said to have been a professional b home to many cultural heritage
teacher. He was a member of the Legislative Council (Legco) \ sites of the Bamasaaba such as
from 1958-62 before he got elected as Umuyinga. : the Khaukha cave.

das Kotecha.

The Mbale Railway Station (1931)

The station was constructed when the railway line reached
Mbale, the then-collecting centre for cotton and coffee, in 1931.
Until the early 1990s, the trains used to ply this line from Kampa-
la via Tororo to Gulu and Pakwach in west Nile. The station is still
in use for freight services.

The Pride of Bugisu Land

One of the symbols of Asian history in Mbale was designed

by Civil Engineer and Architect Mr. Rashaikant.]. Patel. It was
constructed for 400,000 Uganda Shillings, fundraised mainly
through Rotary Clubs, and it was officially opened on 26th
December1957. The temple has a capacity of 500 worshippers.

Located at the foot of Wanale Ridge on the ranges of Mountain Elgon, the area
known as Mbale was largely uninhabited, comprising mainly grasslands, forests
and marshlands by the end of the 19th century. It is reported that at that time, Se-
mei Kakungulu had extended British rule to Eastern Uganda, curving out Bukedi,
which comprised Bugwere, Budama, Bukedea, Bunyole, Sebei and Mbale with their
headquarters at Budaka. In 1903, however, the British directed Semei Kakungulu to
transfer the administration offices from Budaka, further east to Mbale.

OnJune 26th, 1906, Mbale was declared a township, and by 1951, the town had built
modern offices on plots 62-68, on what is now called Republic Street. After Inde-
pendence in1962, Mbale Municipal Council was the first town to be granted official
status as an urban authority. Eventually, Mbale became the Uganda government's
administrative centre for the Eastern region. The town was racially structured, with
the Senior Quarters, meant for the white nationals, Indian quarters for the Asian
community, and Busamaga and Namakwekwe quarters for the Africans. Mbale
gained a reputation as the cleanest town in East Africa, and the then President
Apollo Milton Obote referred to it as the Jewel of East Africa’. It steadily grew over
the years, gaining city status in 2020.




